
BEFORE THE 
UNITED S fAli:S ENVIRONMENTAi PROTECTION ACiENCY 

hi the Matter of: 

CASCAIJl: DESIGNS. INC., 

Scattk. Washington. 

) 

) DOCKET NO. FIFRA-10<2019-0001 
) 

) CONSENT AGREEl\·1ENT 
) 
) 
) 
) 

) 

I. STATUTOff'I" AlJTHOIUl'Y 

I. l. This ( ·onsent Agreement is issued under the authority vcsh:d in the Administrator 

of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (''EPA") by Section I 4(a) of the h:dcral 

Insecticide. Fungiddt'. und Rodenticide Act CflFRA''). 7 U.S.C. § 136/(a). 

1.2. Pursuant to Section 14(a) ofFIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136/(a}, and in accordance with 

the "Consolidated Rules of Pmctice Governing the Administrative Assessm-t•nt 0fCi,il 

Pc11ahit.~!)," 40 C.LR. Part 22, EPA issues. and Cm,cadc Designs. Jnc. ("Respondent'') agrees to 

issuatll'C of. the I· inal Order attached to this Consent Agreement ("Final On.id'). 

II. PREU.MINARY STATEMENT 

2.1. In accordance with 40 CF.R. §§ 22.1 J(b) and 22. I 8(b), issuance of thb Consent 

Agreement commen,:es this proceeding. v. hich \viii conclude when the Final Order becomes 

dl~clive. 

2.:2 The l>in:ctor or the Ollkc of Compliance and Enforcement. FPA Region 10 

(''Complainant"} h,1s been tie legated the authority pursuant to Section I 4(a) of FIFRA, 
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7 U .S.C § 136/( a), to sign 1.·onst.·nt agrecm1."flts between EP • .\ and the party against whom an 

administrative penalty for ,·i<ilations of HFRA is proposed to be assessed. 

2.3. Part Ill of this Consent Agreement contains a concise statement of the factual and 

legal basis for the alleged, iolations of FIFRA together with the specific provisions of FIFRA 

and the implementing regulations that Respondent is alleged to have violated, 

Ill. ALLE{iA TIONS 

3.1, The term "'person" is defined at Section 2(s) of FIFRA. 7 l J.S.C. § I 36(s), to mean 

"any individual. partnership, association, corporation, or any organized group of persons whether 

im:orporated or not" 

3,2. The term .. pesticide'' is d1.•fim~d at Section 2tu) of FIFRA. 7 U.S.C § I 36(u). to 

nwan. inter alia. ··an~ sub<,tan1.:e or mix.tun.:• of substances intended for prc-vcnting. destroying, 

repelling, or mitignting any pest.'' 

3.3. The term "device" is defined at Scxtion 2(h) of FIFRA. 7 U.S.C. § I 36(h). to 

mean "any instrument or contrivance (other than a fire.:irm) which is intended for trapping, 

destroying. repelling, or mitigating any pest or any other form of plant or animal lifo (other than 

man and other than bacteria. virus, or other microorganisms on or in living man or living 

animals); but not including equipment used for the application of pesticides vvhen sold separately 

then:from:· 

3.4. The term "producer" is defined at Section 2(w) of FIFRA. 7 U.S.C. § 136{\'1 ), to 

mean "'to m:111ufacture. prepare, compound, propagate, or process any pesticide or dcvii.'.e or 

acti,e ingn:<lilmt used in producing a pesticide:· 
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35. The term "establishment" is defined at Section 2 (dd) of FIFRA. 

7 U .S.C. § IJ6(dd), to mean "any place where a pesticide or device or acth e ingredient used in 

produdng a pesticide is produced. or held, for distribution or sale." 

3.6. l lndcr Section l 2(n)(2)(L) or FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § I 36j{a)(2)(L). it is unlawful for 

any person "\vh,1 is u producer to , iolate any of the provision of (Section 7 of Fl FRA. 

7 U.S.C. § Doe)." 

.l7. Section 7(c} of FIFRA. 7 U.S.C. § 136e(c). and 40 C.F.R. § I 67.85, require: an) 

producer operating an cstablishrm:nt to anmmlly submit to EPA by March I a pesticide report 

which shall include the !l.11lowing: (I) nume and address of the establishment and (2) amount of 

each pe'iticidal product produced during the past year. sold or distributed during the past year. 

and estimated to be produced during the current )ear. 

3.8. According to Section 7(c) offlFRA. 7 U.S.C. §136e(c). and 

40 C.F.R. § 167.85(al, the producer must submit a report for each pesticide establishment which 

the producer operates. 

3.9. lkspondent is a corporation incorporated under the la\vs of the State of 

'Washington and is. therefore, a person under Se'-·tion 2(s) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C § I 36(s). 

3.10. Respondent is a producer as that term is defined in Section 2(w) of FIFRl,. 

7 u.s.c § 1J6(\\ ). 

3.11. At all times relevant to the allegations herein, Respondent owned and operated a 

facility located at I JO South Dakota Street, Seattle, Washington ("Dakotu Street Facility"). 

3.12. In the calendar year 2017, Respondt:nt produced or held for distribution or sale 

the pestici1.k '"S\,eetwater Purifier Solution" with EPA Registration Number 71326-2 and the 
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pesticide devices "Sweetwater Microfilter/Curtridge" and "Sweetwater Purifier System" at the 

Dakota Street Facility. 

3.13. I he Dakota Street Facility is an establishment as that term is defined at Section 

2tddl of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(dd). with tht.· Establishment Number 071326-WA-OOL 

3.14. Respondent failed to submit a pesticide report for calendar year 2017 by t-,larch I, 

2018. for the Dakota Street Facility. 

3.15. Therefore, Respondent violated FIFRA in accordance with Section 12(a)(2){L) of 

FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136j(a)(2){L). 

3.16. At all times relevant to the allegations herein, Respondent owned and operated a 

facility located at ]800 flrst Avenue South, Seattle. Washington (''First Avenue Facility''). 

3.17. In calendar year 2017, Respondent produced or hdd for distribution or sale the 

pesticide devices ''Miniworks Filter/Element," •·Guardian Purifier Pump/Replacement 

Camidge." and "TrailShot/TrailBasc Micro Filter/ Repta<:emcnt Cartridge" at the First Avenue 

Fadlity. 

l.18. The First A venue htcility is an establishment as that term is defined at Section 

2(dd) of FIFRA. 7 U .S.C. ~ 136{dd), with the Establishment Number 071326-WA-002. 

3.19. Respondent failed lo submit a pesticide report for calendar year 2017 by March I. 

2018. for the Firsr A venue Facility. 

L20. ·1 here fore, Respondent violated FIFRA in ac\'.:ordancc with Section I 2(a)(2)(L) of 

FIFRA. 7 ll.S.C. § U6j(a)(2)(L). 

3.2 l. Pursuant to Section I 4(a)( I) of FIFRA, 7 U .S.C. § I 36l(a)( I ). and 40 C FR. 

Part I 9, EPA may assess a dvil penalty of not more than $19.446 for each ofli:nsc that occurred 

art.:r November 2. 2015. where penalties arc assessed on or after January I 5.2018. 
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IV. TERMS OF SETTLEMENT 

4.1. Rcspundcnl admits the jurisdictional allegations of this Consent Agreement. 

4.2. Respondent neither admits nor denies the spcdfic factual allegations contained in 

this Consent Agreement. 

4.3. As re(Juircd by Section l4(a)(4) of FlFRA, 7 U.S.C. § I 36/(a){4). EPA has taken 

into account the appropriateness Qf such pcnalt)' to the size of Respondent's. business. the effect 

on Respondent's ability to continue in business, and the gravity of the violntions. After 

considering all of these factors, EPA has determined and Respondent agrees that an appropriate 

penalty to settle this action is $13,692 (the "Assessed Penalty"). 

4.4. Respondent agrees to pay the Assessed Penalty \\ithin JO days of the cffcctiw 

date of the Finu! OrJec 

4.5. Payments under this Consent Agn:ernent and the Final Order may be paid by 

check (mail or ovemight delivery). wire transfer, ACH, or online payment. Payment instructions 

are available at: http://\vww2.epa.gov/lin;mcinllrmtkerun:ment Pa}ments made by a cashier's: 

check or ccrtifit:.'.d check must be payable to the order of "Treasurer. United States of America·· 

and delivcn:d to lhc following address: 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
Cincinnati Finance Center 
P.O. Box 979077 
St. louis, Missouri 63197-9000 

Respondent must note on the check the title and docket number of this adion. 
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4.6. Concurrently \Vith payment, Respondent must serve photo,·opies of the check, or 

proof of other payment method. described in Pamgrnph 4.5 on the Regional Hearing Clerk and 

EPA Region IO at the frillmving addresses: 

Regional I !caring Clerk 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Region IO. Mail Stop ORC-113 
1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 155 
Seattle. Washington 98!01 
Young.kresa,:i,)cpa.gov 

Andrew Landry 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Region 10, Mail Stop OCf:>201 
1200 Sixth A venue, Suite 15 5 
Seattle. V.'ashington 9810 I 
l.andry.andrew@epa.gov 

4. 7. If R1:spnm:lcnt fails to pay any portion of the Assessed Penalty in full by its due 

date, the entire unpaid balance of the Assess.ed Penalty and accrued interest shall become 

i1mnediatd) due and owing. If such a failure to pay occurs, Respondent may be subject to a civil 

adion under Section I 4(a)(5) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136/(a)(5), to collect any unpaid penalties, 

together with interest, handling charges, and nonpayment penalties, as set forth below. 

4.8. If Respondent fails to pay any portion of the Assessed Penalty in full by its due 

date. Respondent shall als,> be responsible for payment <)f the following amounts; 

a. Interest Pursuantto31 U.S.C.§J7l7(a)(l),anyunpaidportionofthe 

Assessed Penally shall bear interest at the rate established by th,· Sccri:tary of the 

Treasury from the effective date of the Final Order contained herein, provided, hm.vever, 

that no interest shall be payable on any portion of the Assessed Penalty that is paid within 

JO days of the effective date of the Final Order contained herein. 

b. llandling Charge. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717(e){I), a month!) handling 

dmrgc of $15 shall be paid if any portion of the Assessed Penalty is more than JO days 

past due. 
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c. Nonpayment Penalty. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 37 I 7(c)(2), a nonpayment 

pcnalt) of 6%,, per annum shall be paid on any portion of the Assessed Pena It) that is 

llltlrc than 90 days past due. which nonpayment shall be cakuh1k'<.l as of the date the 

underlying penalty first becomes past due. 

4.9 The Assc!>scd Penalty. including any additional costs incum~d under 

Paragraph 4.8. represents an administrative civil penalty assessed by EPA and shall not be 

deduc1ibk fr>r purposes of ledernl taxes. 

4.10. The undersigned represcntath·e of Respondent certifies that he or she is 

authoriu<l to enter into the terms and conditions of this Consent Agreement and to bind 

Respondent to this document. 

4.11. Except .ts described in Paragraph 4.8. each party shall bear its own 1.:osts and 

auomcys· fees in bringing or defending this action. 

4 .12. For the purp()ses of this proceeding, Respondent expressly waives any right to 

contest the allc!;!ations contained in the Consent Agreement and to appeal the Final Order. 

4.13. lhc provisions of this Consent Agrecrnent and the Fina! Order shall bind 

Respondent and its agcms, servants, cmpk>) ees, successors, and assigns. 

4.14. Respondent consents to the issuance of any specified compliance or corrective 

action l>rdcr, to any conditions specified in this consent agreement, and to any stated permit 

action. 
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4.15, ·1 he ahovc provisions in Part IV are STIPULATED AND AGREED upon b) 

Respondent and EPA Region 10. 

DATED: 

\0, \~ .z~a: 
I 

DATED: 
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BEFORETIIE 
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

In the Matter of: 

CASCADE DLSIGNS, INC., 

Seattle. \Vashington, 

Respondent 

) DOCKET NO. FIFRA•l0-2019-0001 
) 

) FINAL ORDER 
) 

I. I. I he Administrator has delegated the authority to issue this Final Order to the 

Regionnl Administrator of EPA Region I 0, who has n.•delegatcd this authority to the Regional 

Judicial Officer in EPA Region 10. 

1.2. The terms of the foregoing Consent Agreement arc ratified and incorporated b) 

reforen1.·e into this Final Order. Respondent is ordered to comply with the terms of settlement. 

1.3 Tht.> ( 'onscnt Agreement and this Final Order constitute a settlement by EPA of all 

claims for civ ii penalties under Fl FRA for the violations alleged in Part Ill of the Consent 

Agreement. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.31(a), nothing in this Final Order shall affect the 

right of EP/\ or the UniteJ States to pursue appropriate injunctive or other equitable relief or 

criminal sanetiuns for any violations of lav ... This Final Order does not waive, extinguish. or 

othc-nvisc affe1.'.t Respondent's obligations to comply with all applicable provisions of FIFRA and 

regulations promulgated or pem1its issued thereunder. 
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I .4. This Final Order shall become enecti\le upon filing with the Regional Hearing 

Clerk. 

SO ORDERED thi:s 

Keg nal Judicial Of 
EPA Region lO 

I~ day of QcJoi;e( . 2018. 
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Certificate of Scrv ice 

The undersigned certifies that the original of the attached CONSENT AGREEMENT 
AND J:INAt ORDER, In the Matter of: Cascade Designs, Inc., Docket No.: FffRA-10-
2019-0001 wus filed \.Vith the Rcgiunal Hearing Clerk and served on the addressees in the 
following manner on the date specified below: 

The undersigned certifies that a true and correct copy of the document was ddhcred to: 

Bn:tt S. Dugan 
l J .S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Ht·gim1 10, Mail Stop ORC-113 
1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 155 
Seattle. \Vashington 98101 

Further. the undersigned certifies that a true and correct copy of the aforementioned 
document was placed in the United States mail certified/return receipt to: 

Eric J. lfobbs. Esi.j. 
Legal Counsel 
Cusradc Designs. Inc. 
4000 I st A venut· South 
Sl!'altlc, \Va~hinglon 

DATFD this f_~--- day ot Oe,fo};v_. 2018. TERt~NA--
Regional I le.iring Clerk 
EPA Region l 0 


